

## FDA Approves Irinotecan Liposome to Treat Pancreatic Cancer

Subscribe

November 24, 2015, by NCI Staff

On October 22, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) approved irinotecan liposome (Onivyde®) to be used in combination with fluorouracil and leucovorin to treat patients with metastatic pancreatic cancer whose disease has progressed after gemcitabine-based chemotherapy.

The approval was based on results from a clinical trial of 417 patients with metastatic pancreatic cancer. Patients in the trial were randomly assigned to receive treatment with irinotecan liposome alone, irinotecan liposome in combination with the chemotherapy drugs fluorouracil and leucovorin, or with fluorouracil and leucovorin alone.

Patients treated with all three drugs had a median survival of 6.1 months, compared with 4.2 months



Cross section of a liposome. Encapsulating irinotecan in a liposome helps the drug stay in the circulation longer, so it is more likely to reach and kill cancer cells. Credit: Wikimedia Commons

for those treated with fluorouracil and leucovorin alone. There was no survival benefit with irinotecan liposome alone compared with fluorouracil and leucovorin alone. Patients treated with all three drugs had a 3.1-month delay in tumor growth compared with 1.5 months for those receiving only fluorouracil and leucovorin.

Gemcitabine has been the cornerstone of pancreatic cancer treatment for the past 20 years. A common research approach during much of that time has been to combine gemcitabine with another drug in an attempt to increase its efficacy in previously untreated patients with good performance status, explained Austin G. Duffy, M.D., of the Thoracic and Gastrointestinal Oncology Branch in NCI's Center for Cancer Research.

"But beyond that there has unfortunately been little progress made in terms of subsequent treatment options for patients who have already received a combination of drugs in the firstline setting and whose cancer has advanced," Dr. Duffy noted.

"There are relatively few phase III clinical trials performed in this patient population, the socalled second-line setting," he added. "So any randomized phase III clinical trial, such as this one, that demonstrates a survival benefit in pancreatic cancer is important, both for the obvious reason that it can help individual patients, but also because of the numerous disappointingly negative phase III studies in this disease for drugs that had looked promising in phase II trials."

Despite these results, Dr. Duffy cautioned that it will still be important to see how well patients tolerate this new therapy and its impact on their quality of life.

Positive trial results and the availability of new options for patients with pancreatic cancer are always good news, he said.

"However, nobody will or should be satisfied with these modest gains," he continued. "We need to do better at every stage."

## < Older Post How Genomics Is Shaping Precision Medicine in Oncology

FDA Approves Talimogene Laherparepvec to Treat Metastatic Melanoma

If you would like to reproduce some or all of this content, see *Reuse of NCI Information* for guidance about copyright and permissions. In the case of permitted digital reproduction, please credit the National Cancer Institute as the source and link to the original NCI product using the original product's title; e.g., *"FDA Approves Irinotecan Liposome to Treat Pancreatic Cancer was originally published by the National Cancer Institute."* 

## **Featured Posts**

Study Supports SBRT as a Standard Option for Prostate Cancer November 21, 2024, by Sharon Reynolds

## Categories

Biology of Cancer Cancer Risk Childhood Cancer Clinical Trial Results Disparities FDA Approvals Archive

2025

January (4)

CSPC Exhibit 1061 Page 2 of 2